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MODERNISATION IN COOCH BEHAR



CHAPTER -1I

Maharaja Nripendra Narayan (1863 —1911)—
The harbinger of modernisation in Cooch Behar

The history ob&h Behar turned into a new paradigm under the
guidance of Maharaja Nripendra Narayan . Whenascended the throne of Cooch
Behar State he was a minor . The impactve$tern methods upon oriental system
of government was leading gradually but lute the disappearance of an ancie
-nt Indian prince'.

During the perididbm 1864 to 1878 the Commissioner of Cooch
Beharwas empowered by the Government with fulthatity of the State. In 1864
Colonel Haughton joinetlis duties as Commissioner and continuethig post till
1873 . During this period besides the wofk administration an important paot
his duty was to see that the young prinaes yproperlycared for and brought up .
For that reason Colonial rulers sent Malsargj London where he took education
in English . Here it deserve to mention tththe Colonial rulers wanted to set a
westerneducated ruler on the throne of Cooch Belmaithey wanted an ally in this
part of the country. Geographically Cooch Behas situated at the frontier of north
- eastern India and this frontier was alwaysre important for the British Govern
- ment to run their supremacy limdia . Maharaja Nripendra Narayan’s accession he

Iped them to strengthen foothold in the Imo#t east frontier. The year 1878 was
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an important landmark in the history of Clo®ehar.On the "6 March 1878 Mah
-araja Nripendra Narayan’s marriage with Suriltgvi ( daughter of the Brahma lea
-der Keshab Chandra Sen) was the main maiivabehind the modernization of the

State 3
During the rule of Mahardjipendra Narayan the Princely State of

Cooch Behar got all sorts of developmente Thue form of modernisation develop
—ed in Cooch Behar from 1883 when Maharajtained maturity. He has done a
great deal towards the improvement of thentdy erection of beautiful structures,
and has brought the town to its present gooddition . There werea lot of devel
-opmental schemes initiated by Maharaja NripganNarayan from 1878 to 1911 whi
-ch were as follows —
A') Development in Social Field

n the Social field the following progressimeeasures

was taken by Maharaja Nripendra Narayan :

The State Council The Cooch Behar State Council was opened withharaja

as President, and three members, namilg , Superintendent of the State, the
Dewan and the manager of the ChaklarjatEst The first meeting of the State
Council was held on T2November, 1883. The function of the State Council were
three fold viz - a) Legislative , b) Executiend c) Judicial . On the legislative side
the Council Passed laws and enactments. OiExbeutive side it regulated the ma-
nagement of the different departments (Gerigeplartment, Revenue Department and
Judicial Department) . In Judicial field the @oil was the highest Court of appé€al .
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During the reign of Maharaja Nripendra Narayhnee
category of authority were introduced in t8&ate of Cooch Behar viz, - a) Maharaja
(the Ruler of the State), b) The Council apthe departmental heads . Such a cate
-gory indicated the representative charactethe administration .

Education Enlightenment of an area depends on modesans of education .
Therefore, during his rule strong measuresewtaken to this end . Maharaja shows
his farsightedness with the formation of Nighthools for old persons as he knows
that if the parents are educated then thiren are sure to be educated .

With the gradual spreafdschools in the interior and the condéidu
development of the more important institutiansthe town of Cooch Behar , it was
found difficult for the members of the Loc@lommittee either to master or to pro
— perly attend to the details of a businasd accordingly a separate post of the
Superintendentship for the Education Departmeas created in 1870 to advise in all
matters connected with Education, to inspeoti examine the schools and to deliv-
er occasional lecture$ .

From 1871 onwards therksoof the department began to be carried
on systematically on the lines matured bielm@ated educationists for Bengal , and
year after year liberal grants continued @odiven for extending the scope and sp-
here of education in Cooch BehdrA Guru — Training School was established i
February 1873 ; and a normal school, atigo of which had existed since 1870,
was formally opened in 1875 with the full cdepent of classes, masters and stip-
end ® Under the auspices of these two institutioms complete net —work of Sch-
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ools and Patshalas very shortly covered Stege of Cooch Behar from one end to
another and a Deputy Inspector of Schoofge sub — inspector, four inspecting Pan-
dits (teachers) were gradually appointednfr@876 — 1877. The rapid progress of

education in Cooch Behar from 1871 — 1879ewshown in the following tablé"-

Table -1
YEAR
1871 -72 1875 - 76 187D
Description State e 7 6
of Aided  -—--mmemmee— - 49 177 289
Schools Unaided ----------mmmmemmm- 29 98 95
tab 82 282 390
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Amount of State  ---------memee 22, 233 42,591 60,685
Expenditure  Private = -------------------- 6,273 22,357 33,213
Total 28,506 64,948 936 80

Source Chowdhury, H.N.- The Cooch Behar State and itsd.Bevenue Settlement ,
Cooch Behar State Press , Cooch Bel#0d3 1p, 325.

In 1878 — 79 the superintendent of €oBehar ,
after vividly monitoring the actual conditioh educational progress in Cooch Behar,
wrote that “the fear justly entertained i87Z, of a reaction on the Patsalas ,owing
to the disappointment of a vast number oélifjed candidates to win Primary sch-
olarships , which must necessarily be of aitéith number** In 1878 an educational
policy was initiated by Deputy Commissiondr @ooch Behar? The principle that
the limit of State aid ( Cooch Behar) hasrbeeached was fully recognized by the
officers of the Education Department in 18T#ficers were acted on, to gradually
withdraw aid from schools which had giverogdr of sufficient innate vitality, and
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to use the grants so withdrawn to open new ashn less favoured localities . Some
times also , though rarely, aid was withdrawmtlee ground of the obstinate neglect
of the subscribers to pay their quota osend their children regularly to schddl .
Apart from that in 1878 three Brahmin studegtd Sanskrit scholarship , which ind-
icated that Sanskrit got equal importanceindurthis period** However during the
year 1877 —79 ,the arena of education was the whole, quite remarkable one.

The following chart shows the number and stiengf all schools at Cooch BeHar:

Table -2
1877 -178 1878 - 79

Class of Average Average

Institutions Schools Pupil daily Schools Pupil daily
attendanc attendanc

|- State Institution
Higher Class 1 191 129 1 197 130
Vernacular Middle 2 358 266 2 400 284
Class 2 75 52 2 67 35
Normal Schools N e T N e
Boarding
Il — Private Institutions
under grant in aid
system
Middle Class English 3 75 51 3 79 59
Middle Vernaculars 93 3,294 2,718 93 3,381 2,865
Lower Vernaculars 118 3,457 2,759 121 3,675 2,796
Night Schools 23 586 444 25 596 479
Girls Schools 29 421 305 33 455 294
Boarding N 1 | e | e
Ill- Private institu-
tion receiving no
allowance from the
State
Middle Class English 1 19 15 2 45 27
Middle Vernacular 4 121 80 4 158 119
Lower Vernacular 19 408 278 30 669 475
Indigenous Patshalas 29 287 246 26 374 345
Night Schools 10 221 168 10 289 237
Girl's Schools 14 139 109 16 196 151
Muktabs 10 180 132 10 184 92
Boardings T e I 1 | |
-- 360 9,832 7,752 381 10,765

Total ----------- " 8,388

Source: Annual Administration Report of the Cooch Behgat& (1878-79),p, 56.
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In 1884 the Supesmdent of education of Cooch Behar remarked
that the education department had been allogtdticient time to develop the edu —
cational policy inaugurated by Maharaja Nripendarayan and his Regency Coun —
cil .*® Regarding the allotment for grant — inaid of middle class schools , the
Superintendent of Education of Cooch Behar enthd following argument ,” It being
necessary so to redistribute the educationgéiufdr the year under report as might
with the limited means at the states diapa® ‘ the greatest good to the largest
number’, the superintendent was led to aRst 6000 only for grant —in — aid middle
class school . The chief reason for doing thes to leave a fairly adequate margin
for the development of a really usefukteyn of primary education in the state
for which great care was being taken biyth&l educational bodies in the country.
In this as well as in other matters cone@cwith the department, the superinten-
dent had been endeavoring to follow , as a® practicable, the director of Public
instruction of Bengal , and the education cdssion for India ™’Mahomedan edu-
cation also received good impetus in 18®4ring this year the number of insti-
tutions for the special education of the baedans including the sudder madrasa

and The Anjumani Islamia was 19, of whiéh were aided and 13 unaided .

Victoria College : In 1888 the establishment of Victoriallege for undergraduate

education marked the year as one ushennthe fundamental change in the edu -
cational system . Considerable funds had to bedoof course for the college which,
in view of the principle laid down by the Mahg that the normal allotment for edu
-cation was not be exceeded, had to be takeay from primary and secondary edu
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-cation .** The Principal of Victoria college wrote atter to the educational depart
-ment of Cooch Behar that the college possettgedninimum number of Professors ,
viz. one for every subject except Englishd aas a fully developed college teach-
ing up to the M.A standard has seven classesery subject, future need be felt of
assistant lecturers as in government collegfesimilar status?® As compare with

modern days the post of a Principal ofcallege was very important during the
Colonial Period . He could implement academeasures in consultation with the
authority of the State . A college boardingtitution was started simultaneously with
with the establishment of the colleGEThis institution changed educational structure
of Cooch Behar . It was the attempt of Btafp Nripendra Narayan who felt the
necessity of introduction of higher educationthe students of Cooch Behar . In 1897
Acharya Brajendra Nath Seal was appointedhasPrincipal of the institution . His

scholarly views helped the Maharaja to take irtggag measures for the welfare of the

people of Cooch Behar .

Sunity College: In accordance with the wishes ofhisi@ja Nripendra Narayan
and his wife Maharani Sunity Devi a smallcga building 32 6"x 27" -9 has

been erected for the accommodation of thiés gichool under the name of “Sunity
College ”  The estimated cost for constructing the bogd was Rs. 3217 , out of
which Rs. 2000 has been paid by the DewarCadch Behar from the provision for
the birth day ceremony of Maharaja . The fatimh stone of the building was laid
by Maharani Sunity Devi in July, 1889 . Theilding was completed in November

1889 and formally opened by Maharani in Mat8B0. The inside room was'S868
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and, therefore, accommodated 100 studentsrandah in front with cast iron pillars
6ft. wide?® This building with its ornamental facadashgreatly improved the part
of the town in which it is situated . Neweless, the construction of a girls’ sch-
ool (College), indicated that Maharaja thaugfha girls’ college in future for Cooch
Behar. Now this school attained 131 yearshwiestigious academic infrastructure .
In 189@1 the Inspector of
Schools after inspecting the academic psgyrevrote that, a higher standard of
education being within easy reach of allowhish and was able to profit by High
English education , many prefer to go the Entrance Schools directly to do so
through the medium of Middle English Schoos desire to minimize the cost coup
led with the question of distance of thenkies School, led many a parent to send
the children to the village schools firdt Those whose circumstances compelled
them to take advantage of the Middle Englishotarships were wise to stay for the
preliminary lessons in the Anglo — Vernaculahals . The pupils had not altogether
gone out of the influence of the Educatiddepartment but had simply been tran-
sferred from one class to anotféiThe fixed nature of the grant for primaamd
secondary education and the progressiveease of schools made it necessary
to devise means to reconcile the everessing demand for Cooch Behar State
authorities’ assistance . Accordingly during tyear 1892 the conditions under which
schools received grants from the State wdosely watched .State schools were
carefully looked after ,both as regards thenength and fee —income , the grant —in
—aid schools were required strictly to confoto the departmental rules as to pay
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-ment of local subscriptions and the upeegk of houses and furniture, while the
keen competition for state grant stimulatbé primary schools to make greater eff-
orts to secure suppoff .

The following companmis shows the position of primary education

in Cooch Behar %

Table —3
District  No. of boys of No. of boys % of boys at
School going age sthool school to boys
of school - ggi
Dinajpur --------- 1,21,807 21,92 17.2
Jalpaiguri --------- 54, 698 196 16.7
Rajshahi --------- 98,150 1411 17.5
Rangpur ---------- 1,59,271 24439 15.3
Cooch Behar ----- 45, 368 7,996 17.6

Source :Annual Administration Report of the Cooch Behart&(d895-96), p, 58 .

An importanbipt in the history of education at CoocthBe
was the establishment of Entrance Schoolhi sub — divisions namely, Mekhligun;,
Mathabhanga and Dinhafd .In 1898 a boarding institution startedhdtioning at
Mekhligunj for the use of boys reading ire tHigher Class English School at that
place . As the institution was deserving supp it was recommended to Maharaja
that a grant of Rs.200 should be made tosvamtproving the accommodation , and
that a small monthly contribution should betad for its support?

In 1899 — 1900 for the benefit of Matedans, a
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Persian School at the town of Cooch Behadt aa Muktab at Maricha, an almost
entirely Mahomedan village in the sub — dwsiof Mathabhanga was formed . The
following table shows the social position aredigion of the pupils reading in differ

-ent classes of schools in Cooch Beffar :

Table -4
Religion Social position
M U [M |L R
A P |I |o E
Name of  School H H o p D W
| o) T T E |D |E M
N M H 0 R L R |T
D E E T E o |A
u D R A C cC |T
S A S L L |c L |a |R
N A L A |L
S s |a |s K
S S S
S
Higher Class English -------- 315104 - 419 24 3089 419
47
Middle Class English --------- 170 153 6 329 11 2297 329
Middle Class Vernacular ----- 1,153 695 8 1,730 63 729 8931730
Total ------- 1,638 826 14 2,478 DB®6 1124 2478
Corresponding total
For1898-99 - 8 833 10 2,429 136 1,2417046 2,429
PRIMARY SCHOOL.
Upper Primary Schools ----- 646 354 6 1,006 3 31%88 1,006
Lower Primary Schools ---- 4,9401,934 75 6,949 26 1,852 5,0%949
Night Schools -------------- 512 201 9 722 -—-- 94 628 722
Girls’ Schools --------------- 157 41 198 7 61 130 198
Indigenous Schools ---------- 13 - - 13 - - 13 13
Muktabs ------------eoeeeeee- - 50 - 59 B 55 59
Total -------- 6,268,589 90 8,947 36 3,326,585 8,947

Corresponding Total 1898 -99 6,086 2,647121 8,854 49 2,408 6,397,858
Grand Total 7,908,415 104 11,433 134 3,582 09,7 11,425
Corresponding Grand Total 7,672 3,18434 11,283 185 3,655 7,443 283,

Source: Annual Administration Report of the Cooch Behaat&t( 1899-1900), &8 .
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Regarding the aspect of entrance examinatioys Is®t the example
of success and talent. In 1899 — 1900 theegmtage of successful candidates was
73 3! The Haldibari School house has been éyntiebuilt during the year 190¢F.
In 1901 a scheme of re - organisation oé #ducational system was taken by the
State ( Cooch Behar) education departmenbriog the Cooch Behar State educati-
onal arrangements in line with those whuwil obtain in Government districts in
Bengal under the term of the recent resatutd the Government on the subject, is
being carefully considered®

As regards thewer primary scholarship examination , Was
conducted by the local boards , a bog am girl passed in the first divisich .
In 1902 — 03 the class teacher, pundits, selefitem the various State schools were
being trained in batches . In due courseyldoslinate officer of the State Educational
Department would be sent for training in Kursgo The training class started locally
of course, on a trial purpose . During thiaryslight modification of the rules regar-
ding scholarship in the State was sanctiobgdthe State Council with special refer
-ence to cases in which a student becomesfigddior a scholarship both within the
State of Cooch Behar and under Governriént .

In 1904 — 05 attention was given te flollowing
issues in connection with Primary and Seconddncation®
i) The measures adopted for the improvenantsub — divisional Higher English
School ;

i) The training of the teachers of Higher ksly and Middle Class schools in drill ;
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iii) The preparation and publication of an autked book for teaching elementary drill ;

iv) The appointment of drill Inspector for systatically going round the schools to
look to the teaching of drill to bothe pupils and their teachers .

v) The revision of the rules for the awartl Middle and Primary scholarships on
the lines adopted in Bengal and witle view of training up a body of local
men for teachership ;

vi) For inauguration of a system of localnpetitive examinations for Middle and
Upper Primary Schools for selectimgndidates for Scholarship Examinations

and granting certificates to thoset thass ;

vii) The supply of drawing and drill boolnd few other educational appliances
first to Secondary and then to soRremary schools,

viii) The steps taken for the rigid obsmmge of the inter — school rules and the
general improvement of discipline ;

ix) The care taken to enforce the mainteaant all the different records in every
class of schools and their systematierexation during periodical inspection; and

X) The greater stringency exercised in theigaabn of school fees and subscriptions
for the better payment of the teachswghat they might be more contented and

do better work .

A lower grade PleatiggsExamination was held in Cooch Behar in
December, 1906 in which only natives of Cooeh& , passed the examinatith .
The educational historfy tbe year 1909, ending on *3March 1909
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was rendered important by the promulgationtted new regulations of the Calcutta
University which necessitated the raising oé tHigher English Schools in the State
to a higher level of efficiency in order tcsire and maintain their affiliation to the
University . For a thorough re - organizatioh these schools, great effort had to be
made during the year by the aid of libgraints from the State of Cooch Behar .
The development of local resources alsongtheened the teaching staff and took
effective measures for preventing constardnges in it. For the improvement of
general condition and sanitary arrangementshef school buildings separate accom
-modation was provided for the Vernacular &é&pents. Enlarging the class rooms
and also securing a supply of good drinkirager for the pupils was provided. The
Boarding Institutions attached to these scho@sewbuilt on approved plans and were
quite healthy and commodious . The system ofiahmprize distributions has been inau
-gurated and a regular grant for this puepess allotted in the budgét .

Thus the eahlion system was at the peak of successmglu
the reign of Maharaja Nripendra Narayan .
Maharaja Library : During the rule of Maharaja Nripendra Narayan library
was established in Cooch Behar in Nilkatga . But with in a few days, it was
shifted to the centre of Cooch Behar tofet the western side of Sagar Dighi)
in 1870 . It was known as Maharaja Librarks regards the rule of library it was
notified that ‘The library was a public ldwy of reading and reference (but not a
circulating library ), open to all classes@mmunity . No book shall, however , be
allowed to go out of the building . Any omého likes to read in the Library will
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receive a ticket entitling him to read imetLibrary .The official records of Cooch
Behar state stated that'‘lt is a good Ehglisbrary and full of handsomely bound
books and better classes of native officimle permitted to use it From 1903 —

04 the Maharaja Library was named as Shatary *° Such a measure indicated
Maharajas special care for the subject.pfdsent it is an archive for the north —

eastern region named as “North Bengal Stabeaty” .

Artizan School: Among the self — employment institutions osech institution was
the Artizan School . Maharaja Nripendra Narayeas well aware of the unemploy
-ment which was also a fundamental issugnduthose days . Therefore, such an
institution was organized on"9September 1869, and till 1874 it waslam the
direct control of the Deputy Commissionen. 1875 it was made over to the Edu
-cation department and subsequently traredderto the Public works Department
(P.W.D) in 1878 . The improvement was effdcgnce this school had been under
the supervision of the superintendent of woptkere were three departments in the
school viz; tailoring, carpentry and blacksmnstHforge. The first was self supporting ,
but the other two were receiving financialgh from the State of Cooch BeHar .

Such an institution shows the farsightednelsgshe Maharaja.

Medical : Before 1819, the Europeantesysof medicine was unknown in

Cooch Behar State. The mode of treatmeas Awurvedic. In the rural area people
believed in ojhas or village quacks. In 984n Indian doctor was sent to Cooch
Behar on a salary of Rs. 40 per month thetre was no record as to what his
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gualification or training was. In 1841 Mah@a Shivendra Narayan applied to the
British Government for a qualified medical mand in February 1842 Dr. Syama
Charan Sarkar, a graduate of Medical Cellef Calcutta was appointed Medical
officer of the Maharaja’s Couff. In 1846 Maharaja asked for a European b&di
officer and Dr. Ralpf Moore was appointed mat officer by the Maharaja. Before
1842 there was no attempt to open any Halspand dispensary in Cooch Behar .
The first dispensary was opened in Coo&haB in charge of a Sub — Assistant
Sergeon in 1865 .

During the rule Maharaja Nripendra Narayan medical facilities
were at their peak as never before . Was concerned about the health of his
subjects which reflects the benevolent attitudethe ruler. In 1878 a new building
for the sudder dispensary was built at then of Cooch Behar . One remarkable
feature of the medical practitioners neéedmentioned, was that the officers in
charge of the dispensaries were permitteceid the medicines from the dispensary
stock at 10 per cent. over cost price Hottee persons for whom they prescribed
in their private practice, as medicine canhetobtained elsewhere . The State officers
had the privilege of receiving medicine tgrawhen prescribed for them by the
medical officers of the State, which forrgethey used to pay for.

A private dispensarwas , however , opened during theary
by the Assistant — Surgeon on his oaccount, but when this was brought
to the notice of the authorities by the iGiSurgeon , Cooch Behar State authority
promptly suppressed it, as the authority dat think that, as a medical officerin
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charge of the sudder dispensary, the Asgistamgeon should have anything to do
with the sale of medicine on his own actotiApart from that in 1880 - 81 initi
-atives were taken for sanitation and vadmmasystem . The sanitary condition of
the town had been well attended to, drainagproved, jungle and rank vegetation
frequently cut down , earth utilized in fillingp holes** Regarding vaccination it was
true that many of people of the suldlivisions of Cooch Behar town namely,
Dinhata , Mathabhanga, Mekhligunj and Tufangudjrbt yet appreciate the value of
vaccination, but it was otherwise with thowho saw its efficacy during the late
epidemic of small — pox , the people coulot or would not in many cases under
-stand why it was necessary to puncture upper arms in four places in stead of
one on the forearm , as was done in iladicim , and not until the reasons were
thoroughly explained would some consent have their children vaccinatéd .In
the process of vaccination work throughth# State of Cooch Behar each head
vaccinator had six vaccinators working untds supervision . The Deputy Superin-
tendent inspected and verified the work wérg man, also arranged the head vacci
-nator for carrying on of the work from laije to village #° In 1885 Maharaja in
Council was pleased in compliance with tkeommendation of the Civil Surgeon
to sanction the entertainment of a supernargeNative doctor*’ During this year
Maharaja also sanctioned an aided dispensngtpened at Haldibaff The Civil
Surgeon of the State stated that over &&§es surgical operations performed at
the Sudder dispensary of the town which wasiceable®® Such type of argument

shows that medical treatment in Cooch Belglters in an era of healthy medical
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atmosphere . In 1889 the superintendentthed State of Cooch Behar and the civil
judge agreed with the Dewan of Cooch Befwathe proposal of opening an out-
door dispensary at Phulbari for the benefitthe State Officers and the people in
the neighbourhood of purgannah Tufangunj. Tispensary formally opened off' 6

July 1889 *° In 1890 special precautions were takenwsod off the disease of

Cholera at Cooch Behar . Disinfectants were useedly and tar & sulphur were kept
burning both outside and inside of jail wal>* The police and military hospitals
serve the purpose of treatment of theecifd police and sepoys of State In

1891 the following number of hospitals andpédissaries were working in tandefi —

1. The Sudder Charitable Dispensary.

2. The Dinhata Charitable Dispensary.

3. The Mathabhanga Charitable Dispensary .
4. The Mekhligunj Charitable Dispensary.
5. The Police and Military Hospital , Sudder .
6. The Jail Hospital, Sudder .

7. The Haldibari Charitable Dispensary .

8. The Phulbari Charitable Dispensary .

In 1893 a tempy dispensary was opened at Takagach area
to cope with the epidemic malaria During this year some initiatives were emk
in favour of the Sudder Dispensary, whichravas follows™>

1. A pucca postmortem —room,
2. A pucca building for infectious diseases ;
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3. A fence round the Hospital compound;
4. Quarters for Hospital servants .

In 1897 — 98 a syrweperation was taken by the Cooch Behar
State Regency Council to show what kindregponsibility was taken by the State
for medical treatment of the people @boch Behar . The survey showed that
Bengal has an area of 1,51,535 squareesmahd a population of 71, 346, 787 .
Cooch Behar has an area of 1307 squares nailel a population 578, 868 . Up to
1895 — 96 including Calcutta hospital , thevere 445 hospitals and dispensaries in
Bengal or one to 340.5 square miles, wimleCooch Behar there were 6 dispen-
saries ( 2 — sudder and Phulbari was flexibtepne to 218 square miles . In Bengal
one Dispensary to each of 1,60,330 pojaumatin Cooch Behar the number was
also one to each of 96,478 populatich .”

Modern outlook was visible in some estlareas .

In 1898 — 99 owing to a recrudescence ahigyé at Calcutta in the cold — weather
, the superintendent of Cooch Behar madengements at Gitaldaha and Haldibari
for the examination of passengers enterimg $tate of Cooch Behar by railway at
these two places. Four constables andativendoctor were deputed to Gitaldaha
while the examination at Haldibari was cadlriout by the native doctor posted at
that place. No attempt was made to segeegatdetain passengers ; the arrival of
the passengers from any plague - infected lzegey merely reported to the Fauzdari
Ahilkar of the State of Cooch BehafIn this year another initiative was takien

the field of medical arrangement for rajwa The Superintendent of Cooch Behar
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after consultation with the manager , Easteendal State Railway and the civil sur
-geon, proposed the entertainment of a nadioetor to travel up and down to give
medical attendance in all ordinary cases auuyrwithin railway limit>® In 1900 an
important step was taken for cattles . lawv of large number of deaths of cattle
every year and the loss the people sufferedthis account, a boy ( native of the
State of Cooch Behar) was sent to the nfetey College , Bengal with a stipend
from the State to qualify himself as &t&finary practitioner. As the boy would
not be able to complete his studies betbree years then the Superintendent of
the State of Cooch Behar proposed to iappd veterinary assistant in the rural
area>’ In this year another new hospital was operiddinhata®® In 1902 - 03 the
official records speaks that the number ofptal and dispensaries were increased
from eight to nine respectiveRf In 1905 on the suggestion of the Supemiiéat

of the State, an arrangement was made Herrécruitment of compounders in Coo
-ch Behar and in the zamindari dispensariedeurthe supervision of the State Civil
Surgeon only licensed and fully qualified Carapders are to be employed .

In 1909 — 10eaborate anti — cholera campaign was organized
at the initiation and with sanction of Madar, with a view to prevent the havoc
caused by the disease when it broke outiinlent epidemics in the interior of the
State . Some of the principal preventive mezs to be adopted are the supply of
good drinking water by digging pucca wells thgbout the State of Cooch Behar on
the grant —in - aid system, an undertakingwimich the landlord of the State would

be encouraged to co — operate . A large nunabeorton’s Tube wells were to be
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kept ready for emergencies . Pamphlets cantinshort and simple hygienic rules
in the Vernaculars were to be widely disttdzl and village pandits were to teach
their pupils the elements of hygiefié Chaukidars promptly reported cases of chol
;ra whereupon a party formed of a Hospatsdistant , head — constable , constables
and a scavenger was to proceed at oncéheoaffected village with a supply of
medicines , disinfectants , sago and barley ald ef raw fruits, rotten fish and bad
sweets is to be prohibit€d Thus the scheme was on the whole successful .

In such a waluring the rule of Maharaja Nripendra Nargya

medical treatment in Cooch Behar was atbigst position.

Public Works Department During the reign of Maharaja Nripendra Naraya
public works department (P.W.D) worked in tfelowing area —
i) Development of communication by the constrtion of roads and bridges

a) Lowkuti Road construction was compleia 1878 . The new earth work hav
-ing suffered considerably from the floodgpairs had to be executed. It was also
thought advisable to increase the numbebradges, and accordingly two new ones
of 60 feet in length and one of 14 featrevconstructed in the T2and 4" mile

respectively, and one between the Gurghurrea atjdri€e rivers, enlarged to 60 fe8t .
b) Cross road from Dinhata and Mekhligunj wasstructed in 1878.

c) The iron bridge over Torsa river ( Kakgh was constructed in 1880. The length
of the bridge was 240 ft. divided into 8 ipaof 30ft. each . The bridge has three
girders of iron resting on cross girder atsfoiron *°

d) Wooden bridge over Gadadhar River on Ldwkoad was 235 ft. long divided
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into 11 spans of 20 feet.
From 1878 onwards esall road construction plans were drawn by

P.W.D.In 1882 such a plan shows the leraptd number of roads, as follows :

1. Emigration road West of Cooch Behar ----------------- 43 Miles
2. Emigration road East of Cooch Behar ---———--------- 19 Miles
3. Rangpur road ------- --- 22 Miles
4. Buxa Road --- 12 Miles
5. Bowty Road s 4 Miles
6. Lowkuti Road including a branch at Falimaf-------- 26 Miles
7. Cross road from Dinhata to Mekhligunj—---------- 40 Miles

8. Cross road from Mathabhanga to Shitalkhuch------- 12 Miles
9. Ditto Cooch Behar to Gosanimaf------------- 14 Miles

10 Ditto Emigration road near patgramBtwtan ------ 15.25 Miles

11. Kalighat Road ------- --- 2 Miles
12. Purbabhag Road ---- --- 12 Miles
13. Shitai Road --- e L e EE e 6 Miles
14. Sagardighy Road ------- - 3 Miles
15. Falakatta Road -- - 6 Miles
16. Village Road from town to Godown --------——--------- 2 Miles
17. Ditto from Buxa Road to Baneswar hat -----—-------- 2 Miles
18. Ditto from town to Suktahat ----------——--------------- 2 Miles
19. Ditto from town to Sisabtalah Ghat --——------------ 2 Miles
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20. Feeder road from Changra banda to Mekhjig-------- 5.50 Miles

21. Ditto from Dewangunjhat to Emigration Roag----------- 3 Miles
22. Ditto from Kassiabaryhat to Haldibari 2.50 Miles
23. Ditto from Manikgunjhat to Haldibari ---------------------- 3.50 Miles
24. Ditto from Balarampore to Dinhata 12.25 Miles
25. Ditto extention from Tufangunj to LowkuRoad --------- 4.25 Miles

26. Feeder Road from Chawdhurihat to Dhubri dedsta Road - 2 Miles

27. Ditto from Shitai hat to Durgapore - 7 Miles

n this connection it is important to mentiche road
from Shitaihat to Durgapore on the borderQGgoch Behar . It was originally intend
-ed to be made from Shitaihat to Gitaldaie Durgapore with a view to opening
direct communication between Shitaihat andal@#ha , where a market complex for
-med .®® It was thought that if the Mahajans setthdGitaldaha this road would
attract traffic to that place from the tobae@nd jute producing districts of the state,
especially, the Government railway line wadended beyond the Dhurlah . Accordi
-ngly it was considered sufficient to makeRoad form Shitai via Durgapofé .

In 1884 — 85 the work ofadoconstruction

carried on the following projects®

a) Town road from railway station to Nilkutynettaled at a cost of Rs. 3,619.

b) Fair weather track from Bhaiskhuchi tor&toat , 5 miles was an extension of
the Lowkuti Road and was opened in 18&1the shooting party, since then it
is being maintained as a fair weathgeck .
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c) Fair weather track from Emigration roadest of Cooch Behar to Pundibarihat ,
4 miles was a portion of old road operteding the Bhutan expedition and lead
—ing to Patlakhawah . It is useful aseader for the Pundibari market .

In 1887 a railway feeder road frd@hatnai to

Chilahati was proposed by the Road Cess Caeeniof Rangpur. But the plan was

not sanctioned by the Cooch Behar State €bdh

In 1888 the following faiveather tracks were opened and since then
these tracks were serving as important feederthe adjoining market?

a) From Phulbari to Chilkiguri, 10 miles .

b) From Takuamari to Majherdabri, 4 miles .

c) From Pundibari to Patlakhawah , 7 miles .

During this yefor the purpose of shooting party the failog
paths were opened?

a) Majherdabri to Bholka , 4 miles .

b) Garodhat to Bholka , 4 miles .

c) Garodhat to Haldibari, 10 miles .

In 1892 a lighon screw pile bridge was constructed othes

Torsariver at Kalighat . It was named the “BuBridge” after Her Highness Maha-

ranee of Cooch Behdf.

It served the purposghen the river gradually began to expand and
the abutment commenced giving way .
In 1893 a number of maahd bridges were constructed , which were

as follows :°
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a) Diversion road , Mathabhanga was constducwith the iron bridge over the
Dolong . It was built on two wrought ironlgs 3 diameter as piers, screwed to a
depth of 12 ft. each. The road way was matleoorugated iron sheets, 14 B.W.G.,
bolted to rolled iron joists 14 6'.The diagonals and bracings are of T ieom

the railings are of T iron standards ara$ gubing, at the cost of Rs. 5,369.

b) Dodua Bridge on the Buxa road was madteatost of Rs. 3,644 .

c) Feeder road from Dewanhat to Balarampwras taken up with three branches
village paths, at a cost of Rs. 5,071.

d) Feeder Road from Pundibari, Sukandighi @hdk — kata was constructed with a
cost of Rs. 2,066.

e) Kethurghat Road was made at a cost of 224.

f) Khagrabari Road was constructed with oneetl.

g) Takagach Road was made ata cost of 3is. 8

h) Pucca bridge on Emigration Road was done caist of Rs. 332.

i) Janakinath Tewari road from ChaurahatBlmubungamari was commenced at a
cost of Rs. 2000.

In 189394 another road was constructed at Ghughymar
named , Ghughumari road , 10 feet wide . #at¥d a road communication between
Torsa Railway Station to Ghughumari, a diseaof 2 miles’®

In 1896 @mck from Mathabhanga to Ratherdanga Hathm t
South — West of the sub — division Mathabhamga made at the cost of Rs. 650.

Changrabanda- Ranirhat road was made dufifeyear "®
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k897 — 98 the following works were takep 7°

a) A bridge on the Philkhana road was remdlenecessary by the diversion of the
town drainage to the Mora- Torsa at a aafstRs. 1,775 .
b) Diversion of the Rangpur road and conwersof the Manshai bridge into a cart
bridge was made at a cost of Rs. 2,066 .
c) Katamari to Manbari road was made at at af Rs. 4,011.

In 98- 99 P.W.D made a comparative figures batw
amount of roads were constructed and reffam®s 1898 to 1900 . The following

statement was made in this regatd :

Table -5
Year R
Meta Un- cost of |village | Cost of | Total |e
lled | metalled| Total | re- path | re- out m
Road | Road pair per pair layin | a
mile mile per repairs| r
miles miles mile k
1898-99| 5 376.50 | 381.50| 87.12 187 19.51 36,843
1899-00| 5.25 | 358.50 | 363.75| 58.8 164.50| 16.2 21.053

Source :Annual Administration Report of the Cooch Behaat&11899-1900), p,46.

In 1903 — 04 the following works were in pess 5!
a) Two bridges were constructed over Haskhawd Kalapani at a cost of Rs. 416 .
b) New village path on the Abutara Bamanhat resb completed atthe cost of Rs.
1,309 and Latkabari to Chowdhurihat traskd Cooch Behar to Bhaiskuchi with
branches to Baneswar were commenced in thee sgear .

904 — 05 there were a number of bridges s

constructed , which were as follow?®:
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Table -6

Name of work Estimate Expenditure
Rs. Rs.
1. Permanent bridge over shaniajan river on
Emigration Road ~ -------------------m--— - 7,130 7,568
2. Pucca bridge on the Changrabandha road ----- 12,600 8,911
3. New village paths from Cooch Behar to Natabab,271 3,441
4. Ditto  Abutara to Bamanhat ------------------ 2,631 1,218
5. Pucca bridge on the Haldibari portion of
Emigration road --- 11,806 2,647
6. Approach road to Pagla Paiker's bridge — 529 158

Source: Annual administration Report of the Cooch Behat&i£04-05) , p, 14 .

In 1906 — 07 only two ndwidges were

constructed, which were as follow¥ :
a) Wooden bridge over Fulkumar to Nazirhat .
b) Pucca culvert — Nowdanga — Gangerhat Road .

Due to flomthmage the following principal works were done
in the same yeaf*
a) Filling up gaps in the Emigration Roadd amconstruction on a separate alignm
-ent a bridge over the Teesta Char at Mekhjigand repairing a bridge at the™46
mile .
b) Fillingup 3 big gaps and many small ormesthe Coch Behar — Shitalkuchi Road .
c) Filling up seven gaps on the Kakina Road .

d) Filling up one large gap in the Dinhata — M@kimj Rangpur Road.
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e) Restoring the washed away portions of thevkduti Road .

f) Re — constructing wooden bridge on the PatgBinutan , Kashiabari and Mekligun;

Road .

wnN e

No oA

=

b)

n 1L907 — 08 the following culverts were constedc *

6 feet span

Cross road from Dinhata to Mekhligunj -——-

Janaki Tiwary Road "8mile -

Purbabhag Road

Cooch Behar - Garodhat Road ------------

Ratherdanga village path -------

Chowdhurihat Road
Lowkuti Road -----

fekt span

Shahebgunj Road ----
Balarampore Road™3and 14 mile

)

0 feet span

Chowdhurihat Road

S—_

In 1909 — 10 the following works wedone®°

Construction of feeder road from FalimBailway Station to Purbabhag Road

15 feet wide with side slopes 2 to I lmeen made.

A diversion road from "8 mile of the Lowkuti road to the tobaccargen with

two pucca culverts were constructed cotimgcNilkuty with the tobacco garden

and the Garodhat Road at a cost oflRSO0.

c) A fair weather track from ChangrabandhaJ@maldah was constructed at a cost

of Rs. 1,170 .

d) Four new paths were constructed in Tdangunj sub — division, namely —1)

Krishnapur Road, 2) Debagram Road, 3) MarpguBalarampore Road, 4) Salbari
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Road ; at a cost of Rs. 1,351 .
Thus the communication through road was farnre

planned way in Cooch Behar and in adjacertsa.

i) Cooch Behar State Railway: The introduction of railways is a landmark
the field of transport and communication af area . In India railway started in
1853 and extended so rapidly that by 191®eitame the fourth largest railway line
in the world®” In case of Cooch Behar it started in 1890he enthusiastic effort
of Maharaja Nripendra Narayan regarding the consbn of railway at Cooch Behar
should be mentioned here. In 1890 Maharafuested the Government of Bengal
to construct and work the proposed railwagreeing to repay the money at the
rate of one lac of rupees per annum. Gwernment of Bengal forwarded this
request to the British Government of India .&ownent of India did not receive the
appeal favourably and stated in reply ttiee project would not be beneficial to
the Government and that it was doubtful ke the State could afforf .Cooch
Behar State Council advised Maharaja to @k British rulers to reconsider the
whole matter and to lend Maharaja, the eyorequired, the repayment being ass
-ured by the hypothecation of the revenueshef chaklarjat estate. The Government
of Bengal was addressed accordingly. As regainds prospective benefit of the line
to the Government of India pointed odtatthad Cooch Behar being an isolated
country not connected with, and distant frtime main arteries of trade in Bengal
the plan would have been otherwise . Suchscheme would have had importance

only for Cooch Behar itself . But as matten® the Government Railway line actua
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—lly terminated upon the Southen border lofethe State at a point ( Mughalhat )
where not even a village exists still lessy centre or source of trade . The propo
-sed Cooch Behar line would not only connéts point with the large and increa-
seing town of Cooch Behar but it was joinédf, produced ) to Alipur 11 miles fur -
ther north . It also brought railway commnuation within 20 miles of the Bhutan
frontier post of Buxa. As to the ability dhe State to meet the charge of repay
-ment without embarrassment, it was stated &hae- settlement of the land revenue
of the State was about to be completed .ikarease was expected there from of
upwards of 2.50 lacs of rupees . Maharaja Midpg Narayan saw here an opportunity
of undertaking a work of permanent benafit the state and people and was pre
-pared to devote a number of such an increaseai the purposé®.
Sir John Ware Edger , the chiefratacy to the

Government of Bengal, communicated the terms upbich Government was advised
that the loan could be made to the stdt€C@och Behar . There were more cogent
difficulties standing in the way of thscheme in the form in which it had been

presented before the Colonial Government . Traiffeculties were as follows :

Firstly - The State would not consider it prudentctmstruct a meter gauge railway
from Gitaldaha to Cooch Behar unless theidriGovernment would guarantee the
co — temporary conversion to meter gauge ef larrow gauge line between Kawnea
and Mugalhat . It would be obviously anomalao have the terminal portion of
this line constructed on a broad gauge ttren portion of which it will form an

extension®!
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Secondly— Sir Theodore Hope Railway scheme was dedigio connect the Assam
line with Mymensing (received sanction imgiand) . It would seem to be very
improbable that the older project of connegtiDhubri with Kawnea through Gital
-daha, would be proceeded with . The railveghheme of Cooch Behar as submitted
to the British Government was bound up witins latter project . Its abandonment
would necessitate a complete and radical gdah the whole plan. Thus the propo
-sed alignment of Cooch Behar Railway waswdrawvith the object of effecting a
junction with the prospective Government lifrem Gitaldaha to Dhubri at a point
(Abutara) some 5 or 6 miles should fall on tB&te . For such a plan the estimates
would be increased by possibly four or evee lakhs of rupees, as more than one
large bridge would have to be made by stae %
Thirdly — If Government should resolve to abandon tgept of connecting Kawnea
with Dhubri via Mugalhat , then it was eveossible that the narrow gauge line
between Kawnea and Mughalhat might be domayawith .*

At last the construction dfet Cooch Behar
State Railway was completed in 1890 and the bpened for goods and passenger
traffic °* In the mean time the rules of the Easteanddl State Railway have been
adopted in their entirety in this State, atitk British Indian Railway Act of 1890
has been introduced with necessary modificatidBertain suggestions regarding the
management of the line have been acceptedthéymanager of the Eastern Bengal
State Railway system, and the line is beimgnaged as economically as possible.

The police arrangements for the line durthg time still form the subject of corr
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- espondence between Cooch Behar State awythammd the Railway authority . The
manager of Eastern Bengal State Railway hagpéed Cooch Behar State Council's
suggestion that three men only — two comegtaland one head constable —were to
be entertained . The line was still under supervision of the local polic&.

Apart fronthat the encroachment of the Torserriat
Ghughumari towards the Railway line has cdugeeat apprehension as to its safe
—ty . All protective measures were takby the State Public Works Department
under instructions received from Eastern Bérgfate Railway authorities. The chief
engineer, and the manager inspected the dipdng the year 189%. Under report
and being so ordered the construction afrsspvas approved for the cutting of a
channel to divert the course of the riveriohhin a due was course carried out . In
spite of these precautions, however, the rivas, since the close of the year appro-
ached towards the line during the late flaodl is now with nearly 200 ft. of the
Railway line %’

In 1892 anothmoject was under discussion on the extensibn
railway line to the town by bridging the eiv Torsa. The proposal for opening two
flag stations at Fakirtakia and Bhetaguri ve&nt for consideration of the Railway
authorities. The proposal was sanctioned andnémeager of the Eastern Bengal State
Railway took steps to carry it ou¥.

In 1896 th€ooch Behar State Railway was proposed
extend up to Santarabari. Thus SantarabariwRy was surveyed by the Super—

intendent of works , Cooch Behar, under theesupion of Manager , Eastern Bengal

65



State Railway Systeffi.Maharaja Nripendra Narayan expressed his wilisg to bear
the expanses of the line up to Kholta, clvhiwould amount roughly to Rs. 2.75
lakhs , and asked the Bhutan Government fomigsion to prospect in Bhutan terri
—tory for coal and mineral®

In the end of Bewer, 1897 the Government of India sanctioned
the construction of the part of line to Jiajras well as a loan of two lacs of rup —
ees to Maharaja of Cooch Behar to meet pharthe construction of the portion of
the line in Cooch Behar territory, and diegttonstruction to be passed on as fast
as possible*

In 1898 thenanager of the Eastern Bengal StatdwRa
submitted a financial report on railway irhieh the railway expenditure was incre

-ased on the following head&:

Table =7 (A)

Preliminary expenses - -- &S
Land e EEEE 253
Formation ----- mmmmmmmmmmmmemeee 6714
Bridge work --- 58,187
Fencing , & c. --- -- 1,248
Ballast and permanent way -- 19,779
Stations and buildings ------ mmmmmmmmmemmeseoeeeee- 8,353
Plants mmmmmmmmmsmemeeeeeeoee oo 377
General charges ------------- - - 4,144

The amount held in suspense was Rs. 24,885 .

Source: Annual administration Report of the Cooch Behat&i898-99), p, 20.
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Table —7 (B
Faine For the

Year 1897Year 1898

Mean —mileage worked ------------------- miles 22.12 22.13

Train mileage - ----miles 22.740 38,374
Gross earnings - ----Rs. 64,261 66,123
Working expenses Rs. 28,917 29,756
Net earnings ---- --Rs. 35,344 36,367
No. of passengers carried ---------------- No. 62,492 72,698
Earnings from above ---------------------- Rs. 21,083 24,355
Tonnage of goods carried --------------- Tong4,607 15,048
Earnings from above --------------------- Rs. 31,771 33,008
Percentage of working expenses to gross earnibg30 4 45.00

Percentage of net earnings on capital outlay,
including suspense -------- 4.58 4.52

Source: Annual administration Report of the Cooch Behat&gi898-99), p, 20.

In 1899 the railway was also agkrfor both
passengers and goods traffic up to Alipur Duane British section of the line has, sub
-sequently to the close of the year, bepened between Alipur Duar and Rajabhat
-khawa from this place to Jaint*In 1900 it was pointed out to Maharaja Nripendra
Narayan that it was obviously necessary tomg @btain some modification in terms
of the existing working agreement, with spéadieference to the existing portion of
the agreement dealing with the provisionrolffing stock and to facilitate such a
modification line should be converted from62to meter — gauge so as to secure
similarity of gauge between the parent amadnth line®®
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In this way Cod8hhar State railway ushered in an era ofebett
communication for Cooch Behar State and gsppe . Apart from that Cooch Behar
State railway became the most convenient mesdn transport in this state as well
as in India as a whole. As till the gduction of railway, road was the most
convenient and cheapest mode of traffic, i@dpurpose and also for movement of
troops in remote areas . One feature heas noticeable that through the railway
cultural assimilation originated among the gleoof Cooch Behar and with the nei

-ghbouring areas .

iii) The Cooch Behar Palace The construction of a prosperous Paldac¢ha@ heart
of the town of Cooch Behar for the royamily was taken during the reign of
Maharaja Nripendra Narayan . The constructionkwmoad a history of arrangement .
In 1881 Major Mant’s design in the Indo — Sarecestyle having been abandoned in
favour of a new design by Mr. Martin in the ltalistyle and the services of Messers .
Cane and Robins having been dispensed wht contract for the whole Palace
was given to Messrs®Marllier and Edwards of Calcutta , who comwezh actual
work in January 1881, having been spent a gdeal of time in making prelimina-
ry arrangements .

Mr. Martin had slegphis design so as to utilize the fourcoesti
already put in for the East portion anavids stipulated in the contract, though not
, in so far as, under any separate opress penalty that this portion should be
finished in time for the Maharaja’s instailbet in October 1883 . Not with standing

that Messers Marllier and Edwards had theeegpce of previous contractors and of
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the local officers to steer by, they failed keeping a sufficient quality of good bri
-cks during an exceptionally favourable seasbiey also failed in keeping a suff
-icient staff of masons and coolies to ensareate of progress commensurate with
the fulfilment of their promise*® The following extract from the report d¥ir.
Barkley, the clerk of works, would show the pess made — “In preparing the design
Mr. Martin has, except with slight modificationatilized the foundations of the North
portion that had already been built ,ides affording more accommodation, has
helped greatly in adding to the completenesd beauty of the outward appearance
of the building. The execution of the rwowas entrusted with Messers Marllier
and Edward of Calcutta . The preliminary agements of the work commenced in
October and a good deal of time was rtakp in obtaining labour, bringing up
engines from Calcutta and also organizingegular system of work . Till the begin
-ning of January 1882 that the work was pmperly commenced®’ Mr. Martin
inspected the works on the™ @\pril of 1882 and was satisfied that theilding
was being subsequently and carefully caroetl and as a good start had once
been made . The building was completed ughto plinth, and substructure comm-
enced . In 1885 — 86 the ornamental lakes taken in hand and nearly finished
during the year . The earth obtained froncagation was used in filling up holes
and levelling the Palace compound . The smaeh might be utilized in filling up
the places that would sink and slip durthg first rains . It also used for levelling
the portion towards the north end of thenpound '

In 1886 the north awest wings were quite completed and became
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fit for the occupation of Maharaja and himifty.'°

Thus all the roomere ornamented
under the guidance of the Public Works Depantmand the Palace got its fullfled
-ged shape . The magnificent royal palateCooch Behar with its artistic beauty
attracted the tourist from all over the warld bears the symbol of power and gre
-ndour of this small Princely State situatihgthest corner of India. The palace is
now declared as a Heritage building andunsler the supervision of the Archeolo
-gical Survey of India .

iv) The Madanmohan Thakur Bari During the rule of Maharaja Nnra
Narayan, the Madanmohan Thakur Bari wadt bunich was a replica of temple
architecture . The superintendent of work dbser the new building in the follow
ilg way :1°

The necessifyremoving the mass of old buildings witlny
architectural pretensions which constitutdte Thakurbari from a prominent place
in the Palace compound was left for a Idimge , but owing to the want of funds
the much desired improvement could not haenlrarried out. In the beginning of
the year 1889 the Dewan of the StateCobch Behar found out a sum of Rs.
7472 by selling the ornaments of the idaefsich formed the nucleus of the fund
for carrying out the project. The estimatstcwas Rs. 19,510, which was sourced
from three channels First , by sale proceeds of the ornaments & itlols , as
stated above was Rs. 7473econd, the estimated value of the old materiakss

Rs. 3000 ,Third , the grant from the revenue therefore eéatm Rs. 9037, out of
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which Rs. 800 was adjusted during the yedihe new site was selected on the
north of Bairagidighi on the jail road ndaan entire block as bounded by the
north by a new lane, west by market roaduth by jail road and east by Gopal
Babu street .

Apart from that this temple had othéeneents too, which were as follows*
a) A gateway with an octagonal Nahabutkharmva two side rooms 1010 have
been constructed of the same style as thm rouilding .

b) A corrugated iron shed on brick walls 8f? class bricks constructed for cock
room and other out houses. It contains fimoms and the length is 73 feet and
breadth 12 feet .

c) An enclosure wall was been constructed3dfclass bricks . The total length of
which is 1210 feet.

Two gateway on leaide of the main entrance with ornamental
pillars had been provided with three dogrmsvain the three other walls . The walls
facing the main streets had been perforatéd ornamental openings on the top,
which added to the appearance of the walls .

Thus the temple formed atee of sects’ assimilatiom Cooch Behar .
v) Construction of several buildings at Cooch Bedr
a) The construction of the printing pressaswconsequently in progress since 1878
at a cost of Rs.543%2
b) Guard — house , store —room and jailor’ Bcet among them two buildings each
68 x 20 had been constructed®,
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c) House of kumar Gajendra Narayan wasx88 with a portico in front 2 17
,and a separate sleeping room attachec 2D. These house had been constructed
with thatched roof on sal posts®
d) Kumar Jotindra Narayans’ House was8&82 334" and was divided into four
rooms with an open verandah in front onapdl.The work commenced in 1884 and
the foundation and plinth completed .The waevs completed in 1885 at a cost of
Rs. 8,186 M°
e) Brahma Samaj building commenced in 1888 was finished during that year .
It had a portico in front with a towendh projecttions at each end for stair case
and galleries and one semi— circular praectt the back for the pulpit*®
f) Lansdowne Hall, was Italian in style . kxternal length, north to south was'109
— 4 feet and breadth 85 3'. The Hall was placed under a select conasittand
used occasionally as a place of public tmge The main doors are 126’ four
—fold , have sashes embossed with Lordsdleawne’s and Maharajas crests . The
total cost of construction was Rs. 12,318 .The Lansdown Hall on the bank of
Sagardighi reminds us the architectural tadtehe Maharaja of Cooch Behar .
g) The Rajmata hospital building was constrdicte 1909 at a cost of Rs. 17919 .
Thus in theng process of work P.W.D took activeeroh

the construction of several buildings .

Tonga Service in Cooch BeharIn October 1885 a combined Mail and Pagse
service opened for the conveyance of mails pasisenger from Gitaldaha to Alipur
by the State and the Postal Departmente Busome obligations the service was

72



suspended on first October 1886, and re Aepen May 1887 for passengers .
During the Shooting camp contractaranaged to provide an extra dak from
Cooch Behar to the Camp, a distance of akweighout interfering with the
regular service . The State authority hopleat the service would continue . In 1888
a new system namely, Palky Gharry dak vethpair for the convenience of the
native female was introduced’.
In this way the Tonga service contohue serve

the purpose for which it was formed .

Agricultural work on tobacco in Cooch Behar The subject of improving the
quality of tobacco was taken up by the Cassimaner in 1877 — 78 . In this year
100 bighas of land were taken up, the grept®tion at Kowadara near Mathabh
-anga,and a small plot at Situlkuchi kieunj, and Cooch Behar for the pur—
pose of experimental cultivatiolf’ In 1905 the Cooch Behar State authority- dec
ided to undertake an experiment on growinmefcan tobacco (the yellow leaf of
Virginai ) in Cooch Behar. In Sub — divisidbndistricts of Cooch Behar indigenous
tobacco has been grown for centuries . DurB@pt 06 a few acres were put under
Virginian tobacco'? In 1906, 82 bighas of land was selected tébacco cultiva —
tion , because it was decided that agricaltuand of Cooch Behar was best for
tobacco cultivation'?®* In the mean while the Cooch Behar Statehaity made
effort to improve the cultivation of tobac@and have been so far successful that
the Peninsular Tobacco Company have boughtthgp whole crop at an average
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rate of Rs.15 per maund, the prevailing reanate for local tobacco being Rs.10.
As a result of that new tobacco seedsewaitivated in 180 bighas?* Maharaja
Nripendra Narayan sent his third son Vicityendra Narayan to United States
to study the agriculture and specially iabdcco, so that it might improve the re
-source of the State in his returtf°.Here it can be stated that tobacco was the

staple product of Cooch Behar .

The Scheme of Plantation Work at Cooch Behar  Regarding plantation a good
deal had been done during the year 1878this year one thousand sal trees have
been brought from Bhutan forests and plantedhe Nilkuty area . Along with that
800 Sishu trees had also been planted thearStock Yard'?® Not only that a num
-ber of trees had been planted of differentssoas a continuation of the old avenue
on the Rungpur Road . About a mile of the Eatign Road had also been lined with
young trees, in extension of the existinggraxe immediately west of Cooch Behar.
Existing plantation have been maintairtéd.

Thus the work of Plantatioeceived an impetus in Cooch Behar and it
also indicated that Maharaja was well awafethe environment and beautification
of the State. Such kind of an attempt (ptotect the environment ) was identical

during those days.

Cooch Behar Town Committee Act for municipality In 1883 the Cooch Behar
State Council was pleased to sanction thest¢ation of the municipality for the
town of Cooch Behar and appointed a committessisting of the Superintendent of
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the State as President, the Dewan and the intgretent of work as member and the
Fouzdar Ahilkar as secretaf{® Towards the close of the year 1885 the idpal

Committee submitted a Bill to provide foretlappointment of Town Committee in
Towns and other places in the State of CoasliiaB and to maintain better provision
for the conservancy, improvement and watchingethef and levying taxes there 1°.

As a result of the Act there were fouswh Committees namely, Cooch Behar ,
Dinhata, Mathabhanga and Dinhata formed i State'* Nevertheless, such kind

of Committee represents the local self —egoment system in Cooch Behar . It also

helped to understand the actual conditionpebple in the State .

Cooch Behar Merchandise Marks Act To provide a law relating to frauchile

marks on merchandise in accordance with léhe of British India , as enacted in
the Merchandise Marks Act of 1889, the CoBehar Merchandise Marks Bill was
introduced . This Bill was adopted the provisioof the Merchandise Marks Act with
respect of false trade descriptions and redaste the lines of that Act that part of
the Indian Penal Code which relates tradeksaf property marks®

Preparation of Census Report of 1901 & 1911 During his rule an important step
was taken for preparation of report aypydation in Cooch Behar . The work of
registration ofbirth and death in the State helped ing@reg such a report. The
date of taking the census was fixed for 1feMarch 1901 . For thpurpose of the

census the courts and offices were closedwan occasions , once on the™2@nd

21% February , when the preliminary record waeecked, and again on th& and
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2" March 1901 for the preparatiaf the final record'* The census was taken on
the date fixed . All formgequired for the census purpose were supphgdhe Gov
-ernment of Bengal . Maharaja Nripendra Narayas pleased to sanction Rs. 3000
for Census purpose in the year 1900 undgrew and a further sum of Rs. 2,200
to meet the establishment charges forwhele of the month of Aprilup to the
close of Census operatiors®.

Sinmifa in 1911 another Census report , submittgdthe
Fauzdari Ahilkar, who was in charge of then§les operations in the State of Cooch
Behar . In the new census it would be st®t the population of Cooch Behar inc
-reased during the last 10 years from 968 to 5,93,052 |.e., an increase of
26,079 ( 4.59 percent)}3*
Publication of land revenue settlement work ofCooch Behar During the reign
of Maharaja Nripendra Narayen an importaark was the publication of “The
Cooch Behar State and its land revenue sedtiémin 1903. Babu Harendra Narayan
Chowdhuri an experienced officer of the CoBelar State , who was in charge of
the Settlement Department for a long timaswonsidered best fitted to under take
the compilation of this book. The Dewan of Clo@=har State wrote an introduction
for the book, briefly summarizing the resultibie resettlement . This work discussed
the survey and settlement operations commgniirl885**® Maharaja in Council
expressed his remark in a Resolution inctvhi was stated that the evils of the
old ijaradari system are re — capitulatednd the difficulties experienced by the

State officers , who was in charge of the setdnt operations can be read on nearly
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every page of the book.To all the officengho performed their arduous duties to
his entire satisfaction. Maharaja took this opyaity of expressing his cordial thanks .
In this regard it is to be noted that thecess of the settlement was the subsequ —
ent extension of cultivation and the inceead revenue were due to the untiring
energy and active control of the Dewsh .

The settlarh operations went
on during the year 1906 — 07. As, howeveahe scope of the work winded with
the progress of the operations and the @s&rein revenue expected was over Rs.
4,500 instead of Rs. 3,000 as originally expediaharaja was pleased on this matter .
On the recommendation of the Dewan of thateSan additional sum of Rs. 2,000
was sanctioned for the compilation of #gwtlement work . The settlement office
was closed at the end of the year, asbeillseen in the Dewan’s report the total
area surveyed including the town proper Whicame under assessment was 1,458
bighas , the jama assessed was Rs.17,01323-1 .

The Cooch Behar Landholders Association For better implementation of the

Cooch Behar Tenancy bill, the Cooch Behandbmlders Association consisting of

landholders of Cooch Behar was formed in 1908haraja Nripendra Narayan was
pleased to order that no individual holdingState appointment could be permitted to
join this Association and to grant the Asaton 6 months’ time to consider the

proposed law'*® This would mean that Maharaja was a bemauotuler .

B) Development in Cultural field Maharaja Nripendra Narayan was out and out

modern in outlook . During his rule he tookany initiatives in the cultural sphere
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of Cooch Behar . These initiatives were adoves :
Printing of the Cooch Behar Select Record aan official document During the
rule of Maharaja Nripendra Narayan an importadtninistrative measure was taken by
the work of printing CooclBehar Select Records in 1882 . The indexes werade
after the work completed. This records conist871 letters (official) . In this record
the Cooch Behar state authority did notlede any letter of historical or local
interest . In these records some of theerett the views expressed in which were
modified by others, in such cases both sdtéetters had to be entered, as other
wise the reader would not be in positahn all the papers connected with the
subject under discussioi®Thus the number of selected letters becaangel. The
connection of the Cooch Behar state with Brgish Government commenced with
the treaty of 1772 . It was after that yélaat references began to be made with the
Government on matters relating to Cooch Befidee Records have been published
in two quarto volumes, there are 359 pageshe first volume, and 279 pages in
the second“?®

Keeping records innped form was nothing but the farsightedness
of the Maharaja . The two volumes of Selestdds containing day to day corresp
-ondence with the British Government is dusble primary source for the history
of Cooch Behar . Researchers who are now imgastg the different aspects of the
history of Cooch Behar under the Maharajasthem Select Records are the invalu
-able source of information .

Introducing Shooting Camp Maharaja was in favour of implementinBriitsh
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culture of shooting arrangements. Becausdolied to play shooting and hunting .
For this purposes he maintained reserve foriest§arodhat and Patlakhawa aré4 .
In 1897 — 98 under the order of Maharsj@pendra Narayan, lands aggregating
10,418 bighas in taluk Bakshirbosh Putimad aiso in taluk Bara shalbari , Cheng
- timari, Atea Mochar, Takoamari, Ramperé&arbhanga, Paglirkuti , Rashikbil ,
Khgribari , Jaldhoa and Pholimari, at Tufangueggregating 19,980 bighas, 1 cotta
and 5 dhurs were resumed and were bdiegt as reserve forest for Maharaja’s
shooting purpose and suitable compensation wereg given to ryots in this regard
.142

The following taldbow the amourdf shooting expenditure from

1900 - 1905

Table - 8
Year Rs. A. P
1900 -01 16,361 0 0
1901 - 02 20,037 0 0
1902 - 03 32,375 0 0
1903 -04 31,251 0 0
1904 - 05 8,623 10 11

Source: Annual Administration Report of the Cooch Behat&E04-05), p, 26 .

Apart fromathin 1906 at Chilapeta, in 1907 at Kolabanid
at Bholka shooting camps were organized Hig game shooting *** In 1908
Maharaja wrote a memoir on shooting nanieRhiety Seven years of Big Game
Shooting in Cooch Behar amiissam” in which he vividly describes his shooting
arrangements” Here he also mentioned that in 1907 — 08 zhmindars of Lakhi —

mpur, Bijni, Gouripur rendered much helped ntaking the necessary arrangements
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1% Thus Maharaja set the tone of a neMuml activity in the state of Cooch
Behar .

Fairs and festivals in Cooch Behar :Maharaja was a patron of cultural affaiss

a part of that in 1885 fair was organizadBoda , namely Boalmari Mel&" In
this occasion the thakurbari (temple ) at 8acs renovated by the State authority .
The building was 38 6'x 26—6 and was decorated with terrace roof onbars
and with necessary additions and alteratiohs. Whole building has been plastered
and white washed*® In 1904 — 05 at Dinhata and at Haldibiaits were organ
-ised by the municipality of these ared8In 1909 the Gadadhar mela and Phulbari
mela at Tufangunj and Syam Sunder mela atlijlely area were organised by the
State authority*>® Apart from that Rash mela and Rather mBlagneah ceremony
were organized in the Cooch Behar townsa@veral years . Among these festivals
Rash mela had a history of its own . ltswaarted in 1812 by Maharaja Harendra
Narayan on the occasion of his entry imeav building at Bhetaguri. In course of
time it shifted to the town of Cooch Behar. Allese cultural events created an atmos
-phere of cultural assimilation among the peoand it also helped in the arena of
trade and commerce among the businessmen .

Royal patronage on Philkhana : From ancient times elephant shows the
symbol of royal prestigeln this matter Cooch Behar was not an exoepto that .

In Cooch Behar town a road was constructedPhilkhana area namely Philkhana

Road . It indicates that Maharaja gave dbtimportance to this field . Apart from
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that during the commencement of year 1883 number of elephants at Philkhana
41. Towards the end of the year this numivas increased to 54 . This would sug
- gest that royal patronage was verycimuavourable on the Philkhana . The
Philkhana consisted of one Jamadar , two jamsadane weighman , two gola - guard
(granary — guard) , one clerk , mahuts , mate$ @marakatas>' In 1892 —93 a small
catching operation of elephant was takedeurthe order of Maharaja . The opera
- tion would have left a profit to tHgtate of Cooch Behar , after paying all
expenses , had the elephants been Séldin this regard it should be concluded
that Maharaja organised Khedda operation duhis rule for conducting the smo
-oth running of the Philkhana .

Sporting management of Cooch Behar  Maharaja Nripendra Narayan adopted
manly forms of exercise such as fencingcquets , tennis, polo etc. As a part of
that he maintained sporting culture at CoochdBe In 1878 Maharaja ordered P.W.D
, erection of a tennis court similar to Weceroy's court at Simla . The Superinten
-dent of Works was sent to Simla to tal@es and measurements. The proposed
court was 80 x 30 feet with masonry walison sheet roofing 24 B.W.G on iron
trusses under laid by a teakwood ceiliny had got a 0 .50teak wood floor of
tongued and grooved planks. A gallery ofeét was closed along the south side
of the pent roofs of this gallery were alsb teak*>® The inside walls were color
-ed by painters brought from Calcutta . The bogdvhich was commenced in October,
complete within three months . Apart frothat the recreation grounds at Nilkuty

was maintained at a cost of Rs. 597 f@mwn Tennis and Polo and Crickét*.
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Here it needs to mention that Maharaja ated a prize for cricket matches in Coo

-ch Behar namely , Cooch Behar Trophy. He wiae a player of game like billiard

and for regular practice he constructed laakld room at the Royal Palace of Cooch

Behar .

C )Development in Economic Field: In the economic sphere Maharajdiatad

certain measures for planned administrationclviwere as follows :

a) Maintenance of various funds—

i) Communication improvement fund was started893 and for the first six years

of its existence it received regularly ararg of Rs. 50,000 . After that it received

State grants ( according to need) for imprgvthe communication of the State of

Cooch Behar?>®

i) Cooch Behar jubilee Fund was formed in 1887 the development of work under

town committee (municipality) of Cooch Beh&f.

iii) Anndamayee Trusty fund was formed in 1889 on the basis of a will of Maha

-rajkumari Anandamoyee , who bequeathing ait moveable and immoveable prop

-erty to Maharaja Nripendra Narayan to iutséor the welfare of poor and needy

persons .*>’

iv) Cooch Behar Mutual Provident Fund wasnfed in 1902 for providing money

as life security for all the officials , wheere working in Cooch Behar stafe.
Apart from that theweere certain other funds such as Cooch Behar

, Mathabhanga , Dinhata and Haldibari Municipaind, Maharaja’s Children’s Fund

, Reserve Fund, Pound Fund , Village Chakidfunds were formed to serve the
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need '*°

Maintaining budget for several years : Maharaja Nripendra Narayan maintained
annual budget in every year for smooth rugnai the State administration . Beca —
use budget is one thing which helped théhaity to take decision on what meas
-ures would be suitable for the respective y@de budget of 1880 — 81 shows that
the revenue of the year would be Rs. 13512,6nd expenditure Rs. 14,74,212 and
that therefore be a deficit of Rs.1,81,3%° Thus the deficit of Rs. 1,31,561 in
the budget estimate for 1880 —81 becammeder the financial event of the year .
The budget estimate , more importantly woulttc Maharaja’s personal expenses,
State — stables , Hospitality , Agriculturei] JaDebuttar department®!In 1887 — 88
budget shows that an excessive amount wast spue to Maharaja’s ‘English Trip
Charges ®* These extra expenditure would affect theegal allotment of the year .
In 1888 — 89 in view of the necessity fagngral economies in all branches of the
administration and certain of a reserve fyrdaharaja sent two alternative propo-
sals of retrenchment to the Regency Coufmil consideration . The Superintendent
of the State could not recommend the schementemplating the division of the
State from two main sub — divisions insted#dfour at that time. More importantly
this change would upset the present systéoollection of revenue, which was in
fact Khas Tehsil system, and inthe furtheeaof which the sub — divisions viz .,
Dinhata , Mathabhanga, Mekhligunj, Tufangunj Hadir origin *°® In 1893 -94 an
increase in finance occurred due to the mgmifrom Cooch Behar State Railwa}).

In 1904 — 05 budget, it was decided ttodlt tax system should be introduced on
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the bridges namely, Shaniajan "34nile Emigration Road, which would provide
money to the Communication Improvement Fufid In 1906 — 07 budget, special
grant of Rs.10,050 was givento experimestetieme on agricultural sphet®. In
1907 - 08 budget, a sum of Rs. 15,000 grattgdhe Maharaja for an Indian indus
-trial exhibition in the state of Cooch Beh&t In 1908 - 09 a sum of Rs. 9,035
was granted as grain compensation allowanc¢hé ryots of the Stat€®In 1909
—10 budget a provision of ‘control’ wastroduced which helped the finance dep-
artment to rectify the increase on exiteime was due to ‘ Establishment and
Travelling Allowances 'of Maharaja’s office budgend the Council Office budgét®
6910 — 11 budget shows the generakease of

revenue was under the following head&’-

a) Land revenue ----------------m-m-mmomem- R8,892
b) Stamps ---------------- R<14,420
c) Excise Rs. 1,160

d) Interest on loans and investments --- R ®,

e) Sundries R 454

Thus the budget estimh#édped the state authority to decided which
was appropriate to the prevailing year .lHoshows that Maharaja was out and out
modern in outlook .

Exchange of Narayani rupees: In 1887 an important step was taken by the Cooch
Behar state regarding the exchange of tNeirayani rupees. During this year the
treasury officer of the State pointed out ttla@ Cooch Behar State was subjected to

loss in issuing the Government rupees (8rjtin exchange of Narayani coins and
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a complicated bullion account had to kept in the treasury’™ The treasury

officer recommended the issue of a proeaiion to the effect that the state of
Cooch Behar would not be bound to give Gowvent rupees for Narayani coins .
The Dewan of the State of Cooch Behgwpsrted the above recommendation
and suggested that a year's time frothJanuary 1888 should be given to people
within which those who wished to sell thewmins mightdo so. The Cooch Behar
State Council approved of the Dewan’s suggesaénd authorized him to issue the
necessary proclamatidf?

Revenue Collection System: The State of Cooch Behaaintained a
clinical system of revenue collection . Thevenue collection system worked under
the following heads :

a) Land revenue was divided into two headsely, Mal and Debuttar. In this
connection it could be said that the lateuld not be properly styled as revenue
atall, as it was set apart for religiousrgpse and was not available for expen —
diture on secular administration. On thesothand Khangi or house — hold — reven
-ue was a sub-division of the Mal, apposed to have had its origin in the
fact that the Government of India, in cadtidg the revenues of the State for the
purpose of fixing the tribute, omitted ¢ount the revenue of certain mahals as
being appropriated to the Maharaja’s speaia private maintenance, and these
mahals were accordingly set apart for thatpese *’®> The revenue collection sys
-tem was divided into three parts , namklglcutcheri , the Dewanbash Kutcheri

and the Sarasari Kutcheri. The first tweere offices for the collection of reve-
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nue and the last for the trial of summenjts for the realization of rent’

b) The Nezarat department was renovated 48F1 with one Nazir to supervise
the whole department and through this depant the fees used to be realized
from the parties to the suit in cash ,at fof which went to the Stafe>

c) In 1877 Canoongoes were appointed who thadduty of assisting the revenue
officials in the following matters °

i) To try to bring waste land under cultiwati;

i) To see that the boundaries of the St&leoch Behar) were not transgressed ;
iii) To make enquiries in cases in which iEsions of revenue have to be granted,
iv) To enquire about property belonging tofadéters owing large sums to the State
when the areas cannot be realized by the cfthe defaulting jotes ;

v) To make enquiries respecting khas andhgelshed jotes ;

vi) To report on the changes caused by rivers ;

vii) To see that the Cooch Behar authoritidats were fully maintained, and try to
develops the commerce of the country by estaiblg new Hats ;

viii) To take up land for new roads ;

iX) To make enquiries about persons who hgot rent — free land, or lands assess
-ed at half rates , for their lives, atake steps for setting such lands when the
present occupants die ;

X) To look after the Sal and Sishu foreststpdio plants trees on khas land .

xi) To collect statistics .

xii) To perform other duties as necessity exis
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d) In 1869 the Government Excise systdmrevenues collection was introduced
in the State and revenues were collectecth fthe opium and ganja as duty fé€ .
e) Before the time of Maharaja Nripendra Nara Stamp paper was not in use in
the Cooch Behar courts . Instead of statmgse was a system of charging fees
on cases instituted , under the name wistitution Fees''”® The introduction of
Stamps was a reform of the Maharaja , whssed the Stamp Act on the M25
Magh 1268 B.E . An interesting point to be woteere that no adhesive Stamps had
ever been introduced in Cooch Behar . Ligeery other sources of income, the
history of the Stamp revenue of the StateCooch Behar had a history of rapid
progress . In 1864 — 65 the Stamp revenue amduto Rs. 25, 965.1n 1883 — 84 it
was Rs.1,32,833 and it came upto Rs. 1,00/731899 — 1900*° Thus the Stamp
revenue made a rapid progress .
Apart from these heads , Cooch Behar Stateodntred

certain other kinds of collection such asmimal fines, chaukidari tax ett®

Duringetirule of Maharaja Nripendra Narayan all saot
developmental activities were introduced ino€@oBehar which made this tiny Pri
-ncely State a model of developed — modeatl defined State in this part of the
country and from the point of view of heghievements it is amply clear to call
him as the harbinger of modernization . Hiscgessors also followed the same line

in order to maintain the tradition .
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